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Trustees’ Report 
 
The Trustees/Governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report 
of the charitable company for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022.  The annual report serves the 
purposes of both a Trustees’ report and a directors’ report under company law.  The Trust operates an 
academy for pupils aged 11 to 18.  In October 2022, there were 1,525 pupils on roll, 473 of these were in the 
sixth form. 
 

Structure, Governance and Management  
 
Constitution  
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (registration no. 07348329) and 
an exempt charity that was established on 17 August 2010.  The Charitable Company’s Memorandum and 
Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.  The Academy commenced 
its operations on 1 September 2010. 
 
The Governors act as Trustees for the charitable activities of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust 
and are also directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law.  The Charitable Company 
is known as Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and was established to advance, for the public 
benefit, education in the UK, in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust.  Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust operates 
in place of Heckmondwike Grammar School, a foundation school, which ceased to exist as a maintained school 
on 31 August 2010. 
 
Details of the Governors who served throughout the year and up to the date these accounts were approved 
(except as noted) are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 4. 
 
Members’ Liability 
Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company 
in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, 
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased 
to be a Member. 
 
Trustees’ Indemnities 
In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees 
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst they are on Academy 
Trust business as set out in note 10 to the financial statements. 
 
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees / Governors 
The Governors are Directors of the company for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 and Trustees for 
the purposes of charity legislation and form the Governing Body of the Academy. 
 
Governors usually serve for a term of 4 years. This time limit does not apply to the Head Teacher who is the 
Academy Principal.  Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Governor, any Governor may be 
re-appointed or re-elected by the Members. Under the terms of the Memorandum and Articles, the Members 
of the Trust may appoint up to ten Governors and the Local Authority (LA) may appoint one LA Governor. 
 
Parent Governors are elected by parents of registered pupils at the school.  Where a vacancy for a parent 
Governor exists, nominations will be sought from the parents of registered pupils at the school.   Where the 
number nominated exceeds the number of vacancies, a secret ballot will be held.     
 
Staff Governors are nominated by the staff employed at the school.  This will be by secret ballot if there are 
more nominations than vacancies.  
 
During the year under review there were four meetings of the Full Governing Body.  There were also four 
meetings of the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee and four meetings of the Curriculum & Staffing Sub-
Committee.  The four meetings of the Full Governing Body included one special meetings of Governors.  This 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees / Governors (continued) 
meeting was held in April 2022, to discuss Ofsted and planning. 
 
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees 
A full induction programme is provided for new Governors, including training on charity, educational, legal and 
financial matters.  All Governors receive child protection training. 
 
New Governors have a tour of the school and the chance to meet with staff and students.  Governors are 
provided with a Governor handbook, copies of policies, procedures, accounts, budgets, plans and other 
documents that they will need to undertake their role as Directors and Governors.  Governors undertake 
regular training and also have access to specialist on-line training resources to provide continuous professional 
development and assistance in their roles. 
 
Organisational Structure 
The management structure consists of two levels: the Governing Body and the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). 
The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision 
making at all levels.  The Governing Body is responsible for setting strategic direction and general policy, 
adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring results against budgets and making major decisions about 
the direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments. 
 
The senior leaders are the Head Teacher, two Deputy Head Teachers, four Assistant Head Teachers and 
Finance Director.  There is an additional temporary Associate Head Teacher role, initially for one year to focus 
on a key issue, this year’s key issue being literacy and reading.  Previously there was a Human Resources 
Director role but this was removed when the role was vacated in year. These senior managers have 
responsibility for the school at an executive level, implementing the policies laid down by the Governing Body 
and reporting back to them. As a group, the senior leaders are responsible for the authorisation of spending 
within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff.  Governors form part of the appointment panel for 
leadership team roles. 
 
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 
The school adopts the School Teacher’s Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) as the basis for setting 
teachers’ and senior leaders’ pay.  Support staff are paid according to the National Joint Council pay spine. A 
pay policy is in place and is reviewed annually by the Curriculum & Staffing Sub-Committee before being 
adopted by the Full Governing Body. The pay policy indicates the individual salary ranges for all staff including 
the senior staff. 
 
All staff members including the Head Teacher and senior staff are subject to annual performance development 
reviews including objective setting by their line manager.  The Head Teacher conducts these for senior staff, 
and reports pay recommendations for all staff to the Curriculum & Staffing Sub-Committee, which determines 
pay increments according to the pay policy that in turn reflects the pay ranges in the STPCD and NJC pay 
scales. 
 
A Head Teacher’s Appraisal Sub-Committee, supported by an independent consultant, reviews the Head 
Teacher’s performance and pay annually and this is in accordance with the leadership pay range published in 
Academy pay policy and the STPCD. 
 
Pay for all other staff including middle leaders and those eligible to be paid on the upper pay range are reviewed 
annually by the Head Teacher and those eligible for incremental progression have their performance reviewed 
by the Head Teacher, who reports pay progression recommendations to the Governing Body Curriculum & 
Staffing Sub-Committee. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

 
Trade union facility time 

 

Relevant union officials  

  
Number of employees who were relevant union officials 
during the relevant period 

Full-time equivalent employee number 

0 0 FTE 

  

Percentage of time spent on facility time  

  

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% None 

  

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time  

  
Total cost of facility time £0 

Total pay bill £6.892m 

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time calculated as: 
(total cost of facility time/total pay bill) x 100 

0% 

  

Paid trade union facilities   

 
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of 
total paid facility time hours calculated as: 

NIL 

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant 
trade union officials during the relevant period plus total 
paid facility time hours) x 100 

  

 
Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations 
There are no related parties to note in year.   
 

Objectives and Activities 
 
Objects and Aims 
The principal object and activity of the Charitable Company is to advance education in the UK for the public 
benefit, in particular by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing the Academy, offering 
a broad curriculum.  In setting objectives and planning activities, the Trustees / Directors have given careful 
consideration to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust 

8  
 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 
Objectives, Strategies and Activities 
The main objectives of the Trust during the year ended 31 August 2022 are summarised below: 

 

 To ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care; 

 To raise the standard of educational achievement of all students; 

 To improve the effectiveness of the Trust by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under 
continual review; 

 To provide value for money for the funds expended; 

 To comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements; and 

 To conduct the Trust’s business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and 
openness. 

 

Ethos, Values & Aims 
 
Ethos 
At Heckmondwike Grammar School our ethos for the whole school community is based on the school motto 
“Nil Sine Labore” Nothing Without Work.  
 
We expect a lot from our students and staff and recognise that hard work brings rewards. 
 
Values 
The principal values of our school community are: 
 

 Respect; 

 Responsibility; 

 Excellence. 
 
Aims 
Heckmondwike Grammar School has provided the best education for able students since 1898. As we 
embrace the opportunities and challenges of the 21st century, we will continue to uphold the traditions, values 
and high expectations of an exceptional grammar school within an innovative, creative and progressive 
framework. 
 
Heckmondwike Grammar School actively promotes equality in an inclusive culture. As a school we will not 
tolerate harassment of any kind. We expect all involved at the school to be committed to eliminating all forms 
of discrimination, on the grounds of race, gender, disability, sexuality, age, religion and belief. 
 
At Heckmondwike Grammar School we work together to achieve academic excellence and personal potential 
by: 

 Providing students and staff with every opportunity to flourish and develop their skills and talents as 
individuals;  

 Providing academic rigour and nurturing ambition and aspiration in our students such that they become 
the leaders of the future in high calibre careers, via top university education or direct employment; 

 Celebrating diversity, by creating a vibrant, safe and happy school, with a strong sense of community, 
respect and responsibility to both ourselves and others; 

 Challenging and stimulating the minds of our students through excellent teaching, diverse learning 
opportunities, and a rich, balanced, academic curriculum, such that students develop a life-long love of 
learning; 

 Working hard and playing hard via an extensive extra-curricular programme based on the House system, 
that enriches and extends the curriculum, encouraging students to explore and develop their personal 
interests and skills; and 

 Working in close partnership with parents and members of the wider community to provide the best 
possible education for our students. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 
Public Benefit 
The Trust adheres to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit. The main public benefit delivered 
by the Trust is the provision of a high quality of education to its students.  This has been evidenced through 
the results achieved and feedback from external assessments. 
 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust is a very high performing school.  The Ofsted report (April 
2022) graded overall effectiveness as good.  The Ofsted framework introduced in 2019 places less emphasis 
on examination outcomes, one of the school’s key strengths, and more emphasis on student experiences 
observed on the day.  The school was previously inspected in 2007, under a very different regime and whilst 
the overall effectiveness rating is now Good, there is strong evidence to show the school is just as strong now 
as it was back then and even more robust in a number of key measures.  The school has very robust internal 
self-evaluation systems and procedures, which, as part of a culture of continuous improvement, are 
supplemented by periodic external reviews commissioned by senior leaders. These evidence that the school 
continues to perform at a very high level. 
 
The Academy catchment area covers regions across West Yorkshire and wider.  The Governing Body will offer 
up to 210 places at age 11 (8 forms of c. 26 pupils) in September 2022.  Places are offered to pupils who are 
identified by means of an entrance examination as being in approximately the top 25% of the ability range.  
Admission to the school is not based on any voluntary financial contribution. 
 
All students in Year 11 currently at Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust are allocated a meeting 
with a senior member of staff to consider their ‘A’ level choices at our sixth form.  For those who wish to join 
our sixth form from other schools, entry is based on academic performance and all courses of study require 
certain minimum grades at GCSE.  Our policy is designed to ensure that all students accepted into the sixth 
form are placed on appropriate courses of study where they are most likely to succeed and achieve their 
potential.   

 
Strategic Report 
 
Achievements and Performance 
 
GCSE Results 2022 
Students are to be congratulated on their outstanding successes at GCSE, in a year when we returned to 
national GCSE exams post Covid-19 restrictions, where centre and teacher assessed grades were used 
instead. As well as some overall excellent results for the school, there were 89.8% of our students who 
achieved five or more passes graded 9-7. 73.7% of our Year 11 students secured an impressive eight or more 
GCSE passes graded 9-7. 98 students achieved ten or more GCSEs at grade 9-7.  Our headline figure of 9-7 
grades is 83.3%, which is fantastic. 
 
Some impressive overall statistics include: 
 

 98 students with ten or more 9-7 grades; 

 151 students with eight or more 9-7 grades; 

 184 students with five or more 9-7 grades. 
 
Post 16 Results 2022 
The profile of our grades shows a very strong bias towards the upper range of grades. 82.9% of A Level results 
were at grade C or better and 79.4% of these grades were either A*, A or B.  The latest Inspection Data 
Summary report states that “the percentage of students achieving at least AAB in 3 A levels was significantly 
above national and in the highest 20% in 2022.” 
 
There were 320 A* and A grades altogether, including 64 students who achieved three or more grade A* or A 
passes. 20 students achieved 4 A* or A grades in their A Levels, and 14 students achieved an incredible A* 
grade in all of their A Levels.  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 

Achievements and Performance (continued) 
 
Attendance 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust continued to be impacted by Covid-19 absence and 
students achieved an attendance level of 94.1%. 
 
Other accomplishments 
The school remains a place where students can gain a vast range of enriching experiences above and beyond 
the outstanding work done in the classroom.  A host of trips and expeditions to UK and foreign destinations, 
musical and theatrical productions, sports and cultural activities, charity events and competitions combine with 
the academic curriculum to give opportunities to develop all the skills and attributes that will enable our students 
to make a profound contribution beyond school.  The school provides an impressive array of lunch time clubs, 
house activities and supports many charitable events, alongside the academic curriculum.   
 
Key Performance Indicators 
Financial performance is monitored throughout the year and action is taken to ensure that: 

 

 The Trust has sufficient cash on hand to meet all short and medium term financial obligations; 

 Actual expenditure incurred is managed against that planned in any single financial year; 

 A minimum revenue reserve equivalent to at least 2% of GAG is held at all times; 

 Three year financial forecasts are prepared to ensure that the Trust remains financially viable; 

 Statutory accounts and other ESFA returns are prepared and submitted in line with the timescales laid 
down by the Education & Skills Funding Agency; and 

 No significant audit findings are reported to the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee as a result of periodic 
external audits. 

 
Going Concern 
After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has an expectation that the Academy Trust has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. These resources take into 
consideration the impact from budget pressures such as anticipated pay awards, inflationary increases, and 
increasing utilities costs.  For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial 
statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement 
of Accounting Policies. 
 
Financial Review  
Most of the Trust’s income is obtained from the Department for Education (DfE), via the Education & Skills 
Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes.  
The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2022, and the associated expenditure 
are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. 
 
During the year ended 31 August 2022, total expenditure of £8.9m (2021 £8.6m) was mostly covered by 
recurrent grant funding from the ESFA and other incoming resources.   
 
The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statement of 
Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2019), such grants are shown in the 
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund.   The restricted fixed asset fund 
balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned. 
 
At 31 August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £11.6m (2021 £12.1m) and movements in tangible 
fixed assets are shown in note 11 to the financial statements.  The value of fixed assets includes the assets 
that were ‘donated’ by Kirklees Metropolitan Borough Council as part of the transfer agreement in 2010. 
 
The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the students 
of the Academy. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

 
Reserves Policy 
As at 31 August 2022, the balance of the Academy’s unrestricted general funds was £102k (2021: £243k) and 
the balance of its restricted general fund was £2,552k (2021: £1,638k), £246k of which relates to the school 
fund (2021: £245k) excluding fixed assets and before allowing for pension liabilities.  Following the actuary’s 
valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the present value of the defined benefits scheme 
liabilities is less than the fair value of the plan assets, presenting a notional surplus, as management do not 
consider that the Trust will be able to recover this surplus, the surplus has not been recognised in the balance 
sheet (2021: £4.7m pension liability).  This approach to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is in 
accordance with FRS102 (note 24). 
 
The Governors review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. The review encompasses the nature of income 
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves.  The Trust 
aims to maintain a minimum reserve balance of at least 2% of General Annual Grant at all times.  
 
For 2021/22 this would equate to approximately £162k.  At the year end the Trust held more than this level of 
unrestricted general fund reserves. 
 
Reserves are important to the Trust and remain available to be used: 
 

 In support of the revenue budget at a time when government grant income is reducing; 

 To meet the cost of any significant but unforeseen items of expenditure; and 

 To contribute to any capital projects that may be entered into in support of the long-term strategic aims of 
the organisation. 

 
Investment Policy 
Governors seek to achieve a balance between return and investment risk to achieve a reasonable return on 
the funds available in any given year. 
 
During the year, funds were spread across different banking and investment institutions to reduce the level of 
risk to which Academy funds were exposed, whilst generating interest to be used to further the aims of the 
Academy.      
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
The Trust Members, Governors and Senior Staff are confident that there is currently no significant risk to the 
future operation or success of the Academy.   
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has proved to be a significant challenge over the last couple of years.  Although the 
pandemic did not cause any lockdowns in this reporting year, it did at times create staffing difficulties due to 
the number of staff absences.  As we move into a new period of living with the pandemic the factors causing 
the largest threat to the Trust’s key purpose of education in the UK will be cost pressures.  Pay awards for staff 
exceed those originally included in budget assumptions and increasing energy costs all pose uncertainties.  
Although costs will be reviewed and additional funding from government relief may mitigate some of these 
anticipated costs, the Trust may also make use of its reserves to provide short-term support for the revenue 
budget if required.  Therefore during 2021/22, Governors considered the budget and have put in place a 
suitable strategy that will not adversely affect the quality of the education provision. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust 

12  
 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued) 
Governors feel they have considered and taken steps to manage the principal risks associated with Britain 
having left the European Union (Brexit).  However, what is also becoming apparent is that the pandemic and / 
or Brexit is having an impact on the supply chain for some goods and services, and the Trust will ensure this 
is monitored and managed to allow the Academy to continue to provide a high quality education in a safe and 
supportive environment.   

 
Credit, cash flow & liquidity risks 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from Academy deposits with banks and other financial institutions.  Academy deposits are 
now held with two of the top four clearing banks, National Westminster Bank plc and HSBC Bank plc, along 
with other financial institutions to spread the risk to which Academy funds may be exposed.  Previously the 
Trust’s main investments were actively managed on its behalf by Gale and Phillipson Investment Services 
Limited.  They withdrew from the savings market in year and the Trust took over the management of these 
investments with Skipton Building Society, National Counties Building Society and Virgin Money.  The Trust 
has since closed the accounts with Skipton Building Society and Virgin Money, and will use the Flagstone 
investment platform moving forward.   
 
The Academy generates a small amount of income from lettings and levies a charge for some services to meet 
some of the cost of provision (e.g. music lessons).  It does not generally offer credit to parents, students or 
external users of academy facilities. 
 
Cash Flow Risk 
As most of the activities of the Academy are funded directly by the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 
with monthly funding allocations, there is not considered to be significant risk that it will be unable to finance 
its day to day operations.  The Academy monitors and manages cash flow on a daily basis to ensure that it 
has, at all times, short term liquidity to meet all of its financial commitments.  During the year, the Academy 
received an allocation of £33k of Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) funding (2021: £32k) from the ESFA.  This 
funding, along with other Academy resources has been invested in improving the fabric of our buildings during 
the year. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
Given that the Academy is funded directly by Government and has significant reserves at 31 August 2022, 
there are considered to be no significant liquidity risks.   
 
Plans for Future Periods  
The Academy will strive to improve outcomes for all students in order to maximise their life chances and their 
choices of higher education or employment opportunities. Our plans for Heckmondwike Grammar School 
Academy Trust over the next few years are to maintain our traditional ethos, centred on the school’s Latin 
Motto – Nil Sine Labore (Nothing Without Work). This is supplemented by our core values of respect, 
responsibility and excellence. However, we will continue to be forward thinking, outward facing and keen to 
take advantage of new opportunities. 
 
The Academy plans to have a huge push on extra curricula clubs and societies, providing a wide ranging 
choice for all students. 
 
In the Real Schools Guide 2022, HGS was the number 1 secondary school in Kirklees and Calderdale.  HGS 
was also ranked the 2nd best performing school in the North of England in the Sunday Times Parent Power 
survey 2023. Our ambition is to maintain these rankings and be the school of choice for year 7 parents and 
enhance our reputation to attract the most able and aspirant A level students to join our sixth form. Our future 
plans are to maintain the admission numbers of 210 entering year 7 and between 200-250 entering Year 12. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 
 
Plans for Future Periods (continued) 
With a bespoke CPD program for all staff, ensuring that staff are well placed for promotion and progression, 
and careful management of staff workload and wellbeing we strive to be an employer of choice. 
 
There were no major infrastructure projects.  The Academy will continue to improve the school estate to provide 
the best environment for teaching and learning for students and staff.  We will be submitting applications for 
the new round of CIF funding in December 2022.   
 
Fundraising 
The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers and the Trustees monitored all fundraising 
undertaken during the year.  During the year a number of events raised money for charitable causes nominated 
by the school council the total raised for good causes was £15,307 (2021: £4,864). 
 
All fundraising conforms to recognised standards and is monitored as such.  No complaints have been received 
during the year in relation to fundraising activity and there are no areas of fundraising that place undue pressure 
on others to donate. 
 

Auditor 
 
Insofar as the Trustees are aware: 
 

 there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and 
 

 the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 

 
This Trustees’ report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the 
company directors, on 15 December 2022 and signed on the board’s behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Derek G Cross 
Trustee and Chair of Governors 
 
15 December 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Derek Cross (Dec 15, 2022 15:29 GMT)
Derek Cross

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Governance Statement 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Heckmondwike Grammar School 
Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control; financial and otherwise. However, such a 
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can 
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
 
The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as Accounting Officer, 
for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial management 
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.  The Head Teacher 
is responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal 
controls. 
 
Governance 
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the 
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities.  The Full Governing Body formally met four times during the year.   
 
Attendance during the year for these meetings was as follows: 
 

Governor 
Meetings 
attended 

Out of a possible 

S Ahmed (resigned 14 Jul 22) 4 4 

D Cross (Chair 1) 2 4 

J Dixon (Chair - resigned 5 Sep 22 2) 2 4 

S Doubell  4 4 

S Eakin (resigned 19 Oct 21) 0 0 

D Hall  4 4 

S Hancock  3 3 

M Hans  4 4 

G Harris (resigned 22 Mar 22) 1 2 

J Hodgson 4 4 

P Roberts (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer) 4 4 

K Wilson  4 4 

 
1 Appointed Chair of Governors 18 October 2022 
2 Resigned as Chair of Governors and as a Governor 
 
Governance review 
Each Governing Body meeting involves an element of training on a number of topics, including safeguarding, 
data analysis and updates to the Academy Trust Handbook and implications for governance.  Governors 
appointed in year always undergo an induction covering key relevant topics, have a New Governor Handbook 
and role specific guidance.  
 
Although the earlier round of meetings were held virtually to protect the health and safety of all involved from 
the risk of Covid-19, Governors have continued to carry out their responsibilities.  Governors have been kept 
up to date with, and been involved, in the assessment of the Covid-19 impact on the Academy Trust, The 
Ofsted outcome and action plan, as well as other standard events.  As well as the Governing Body meeting 
schedule this has been through shared staff briefings, weekly updates between the Chair of Governors and 
the Head Teacher, attendance at some staff weekly briefings by the Chair of Governors, regular updates 
issued to all Governors, and other specific communications. 
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Governance Statement (continued) 
 
Finance & Risk Sub-Committee 
The Finance & Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the Full Governing Body.  The purpose of the Sub-
Committee is to:  
 

 Ensure sound management of the Academy’s finances and resources including buildings; 

 Assist the decision making of the Governing Body, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given 
to the best means of fulfilling the Governing Body's responsibilities; 

 Ensure compliance with the Academy Trust Handbook, Academies Accounts Direction and Charities 
SORP 2019; 

 To ensure that there is internal scrutiny over the Academy’s financial affairs in line with the requirements 
of the Academy Trust Handbook;  

 Ensure that the Academy undertakes proper planning and monitoring; 

 Ensure that financial transactions represent good value for money;    

 Make appropriate recommendations on such matters to the governing body on a regular basis;  

 Refer any major issues to the Full Governing Body for consideration.  
 
During the year, Governors considered a wide range of financial matters, including: 
 

 Monitoring reports of the financial position against budget; 

 The revenue budget for 2022/23 and medium term financial plan 2023/24 & 2024/25; 

 Internal and external audit; 

 Site works, security and safeguarding; 

 Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) bids and previous projects; 

 Banks and investments; 

 Various DfE / ESFA returns, including Land & Buildings Collection Tool, Academies Accounts Return and 
School Resource Management Self-Assessment Toolkit checklist and benchmarking dashboard; 

 The financial and operational performance of the catering function; 

 Risk management. 
 
Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows: 
 

Governor 
Meetings 
attended 

Out of a possible 

S Ahmed (resigned 14 Jul 22) 3 4 

D Cross 4 4 

J Dixon (resigned 5 Sep 22) 3 4 

S Eakin (resigned 19 Oct 21) 1 1 

D Hall 3 4 

G Harris (resigned 22 Mar 22) 1 2 

J Hodgson (Chair) 3 4 

P Roberts (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer) 4 4 

K Wilson 3 4 

 
Curriculum & Staffing Sub-Committee 
The Curriculum & Staffing Committee is a sub-committee of the Full Governing Body.  The purpose of the Sub-
Committee is to: 

 Ensure the curriculum is fit for purpose in terms of the Trust’s responsibility for students, complies with any 
statutory requirements and takes in to account current accountability measures. 
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Governance Statement (continued) 
 
Curriculum & Staffing Sub-Committee (continued) 

 Ensure staff are recruited into vacant positions, are appropriately trained, and follow a robust appraisal 
system. 

 Ensure the standards of the school are of the highest order, as evidenced by academic performance and 
progression to sixth form and higher education. 

 Make appropriate recommendations on such matters to the Full Governing Body on a regular basis 

 Refer any major issues to the Full Governing Body for consideration. 

During the year, Governors consider a wide range of matters, including: 

 Teaching and learning; 

 Results and student recruitment; 

 Curriculum development; 

 Initial Teacher Training and Early Career Teacher; 

 Safeguarding; 

 Student numbers and entrance exam; 

 Staff and Student Wellbeing; 

 Performance Management and pay progression; 

 Staff Recruitment; 

 Policies; 

 Covid-19 updates. 

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows: 
 

Governor 
Meetings 
attended 

Out of a possible 

D Cross 3 4 

J Dixon (resigned 5 Sep 22) 4 4 

S Doubell 3 4 

S Hancock 3 4 

M Hans 3 4 

P Roberts (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer) 4 4 

K Wilson (Chair) 4 4 

 

Review of Value for Money 
As Accounting Officer, the Head Teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good 
value in the use of public resources.  The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the 
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received and expended.  
 
The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money 
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees areas in which value for money can be 
improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework, where appropriate and available. 
 
The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by, for 
example: 
 

 Keeping the efficiency of the curriculum and associated staffing levels under review to ensure that 
effective use is made of employees in this high cost area; 

 Managing staff vacancies where this does not have a detrimental impact on teaching and learning;  

 Reviewing the financial and operational performance of the catering function. 
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Governance Statement (continued) 
 

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate the risk 
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives.  It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate 
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and then to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control has been in place in Heckmondwike 
Grammar School Academy Trust for the period from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date 
of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 

 
Capacity to Handle Risk 
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the 
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.  The risk 
register is a standing item for every meeting of the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee.  The Finance & Risk Sub-
Committee also fulfils the role of Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust 
Handbook (ATH). The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a robust on-going process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the risks to the Academy Trust that such process has been in place for the period 
from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements.  Further, the Governing Body regularly reviews this process. 
 
The Risk and Control Framework 
The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management 
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and 
accountability. 
 
In particular, the framework includes: 
 

 delegation of authority and segregation of duties; 
 comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports 

which are reviewed and agreed by the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee; 
 regular reviews by the Governing Body Finance & Risk Sub-Committee of reports which indicate financial 

performance against the budget and forecast, and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure 
programmes; 

 setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
 clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; 
 identification and management of key risks. 
 
The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has instructed the 
Chair of the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee of the Governing Body to ensure that checks and tests are carried 
out on key financial systems in order to provide assurance that these are operating effectively and as intended.  
The Chair of the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee has appointed internal auditors, Simpson Wood Limited, to 
undertake these checks and to prepare written reports.   
 
The internal auditor’s role includes performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust’s financial systems.  
The checks carried out for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 included: 
 

• testing of payroll and reporting systems; 

• testing of non-DfE / ESFA income;  

• checking and testing 16-19 bursary process and payment; and 

• testing of purchase ledger. 
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Governance Statement (continued) 
 
The Risk and Control Framework (continued) 
Written reports are presented to the Board of Trustees, through the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee, on the 
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities.  
The report includes areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and actions.  During the year, a schedule 
of work was delivered and there were no significant findings resulting from the work undertaken.  

 
Review of Effectiveness 
As Accounting Officer, the Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control.  During the year in question the review has been informed by: 
 

• the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development 
and maintenance of the internal control framework; 

• the work of the Chair of the Finance & Risk Sub-Committee of the Governing Body; 

• information available such as the school resource management self-assessment tool; 

• the work of internal audit; 

• the work of the external auditor. 
 

The Finance & Risk Sub-Committee have advised the Accounting Officer of the implications of the result of 
their review of the system of internal control and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in 
place. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 15 December 2022 and signed on its behalf 
by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Derek G Cross Peter Roberts 
Chair of Trustees Head Teacher and Accounting Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Derek Cross (Dec 15, 2022 15:29 GMT)
Derek Cross

Peter roberts (Dec 15, 2022 17:18 GMT)

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance 
 

As Accounting Officer of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust I have considered my responsibility 
to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material 
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the Funding 
Agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.  As part of my 
consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021. 
 
I confirm that the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and I are able to identify any material irregular or improper 
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under 
the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021. 

 
I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered 
to date.  If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of 
Trustees and ESFA. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Peter Roberts  
Accounting Officer  
 
15 December 2022 
 

  

Peter roberts (Dec 15, 2022 17:18 GMT)

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities 
 
The Trustees (who act as Governors of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and who are also 
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the 
Trustees’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with the Annual Academies Accounts Direction 
issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under company 
law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of its 
resources, including income and expenditure, for that period.  In preparing these financial statements, the 
Trustees are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 
2021/2022; 

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS102) have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
charitable company will continue in business. 

 
The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2006.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that, in its conduct and operation, the charitable company applies 
financial and other controls which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial 
management.  They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the Education & Skills Funding 
Agency (ESFA)/Department for Education have been applied for the purposes intended. 
 
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company’s website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 15 December 2022 and signed on its behalf 
by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Derek G Cross 
Chair of Trustees 
 
 

  

Derek Cross (Dec 15, 2022 15:29 GMT)
Derek Cross

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Heckmondwike 
Grammar School Academy Trust 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust (“the ‘Academy 
Trust’) for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance 
Sheet, the Statement of Cash and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Accounting and 
Reporting by Charities; Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to Charities (Charities SORP 2019) 
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust’s affairs at 31 
August 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure, for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and  

 have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts 
Direction 2021 to 2022. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, 
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue 
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue.  

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information. Our 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we 
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 the information given in the Trustees’ Report including the incorporated Strategic Report for the 
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements; and 

 the Trustees’ Report including the incorporated Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance 
with applicable legal requirements. 
 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course 
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report including the incorporated 
Strategic Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 

Responsibilities of Trustees 

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the Trustees (who are 
also the directors for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and its activities, we identified 
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the funding agreement with the 
Department of Education, UK tax legislation, pensions legislation, employment regulation and health and 
safety regulation, anti-bribery, corruption and fraud, money laundering, non-compliance with implementation 
of government support schemes relating to COVID-19, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance 
might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that 
have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements, such as the Companies Act 2006, the 
Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. 

To help us identify instances of non-compliance with these laws and regulations, and in identifying and 
assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance, our procedures included, but were 
not limited to: 
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• Inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, as to whether the 
Academy Trust is in compliance with laws and regulations, and discussing their policies and 
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations; 

• Inspecting correspondence, if any, with relevant licensing or regulatory authorities; 
• Communicating identified laws and regulations to the engagement team and remaining alert to any 

indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and 
• Considering the risk of acts by the Academy Trust which were contrary to applicable laws and 

regulations, including fraud.   
 

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the preparation of the financial 
statements, such as the funding agreement with the Department of Education, tax legislation, pension 
legislation, the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 
to 2022. 

In addition, we evaluated the Trustees’ and management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent 
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the 
principal risks were related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management 
bias through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to 
income recognition (which we pinpointed to the cut off assertion) and significant one-off or unusual 
transactions. 

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to: 

 Making enquiries of the Trustees and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud; 

 Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud; 

 Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and 

 Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing journal entry 
testing. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the 
prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management. As with any audit, there 
remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal controls. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 

auditor’s report. 

Use of the audit report 

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy 
Trust’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Academy Trust and the Academy Trust’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed. 

 

 

Shaun Mullins (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor  
5th Floor 
3 Wellington Place 
Leeds 
LS1 4AP  
 
15 December 2022  

 

Mazars LLP (Dec 16, 2022 13:05 GMT)
Mazars LLP

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and the Education & 
Skills Funding Agency 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 November 2022 and further to the 

requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts 

Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the 

expenditure disbursed and income received by Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust during the 

period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and 

the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

This report is made solely to Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance 

with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to 

Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in 

a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our 

work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Heckmondwike Grammar School 
Academy Trust’s Accounting Officer and the reporting accountant 

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy 

Trust’s funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 16 January 2018, and the Academy 

Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received 

is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 

which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical 

guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 

requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come 

to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed 

and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to 

purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which 

govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and 

Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement 

as defined in our engagement letter.  

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 

explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 

regularity.  

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters 

that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive 

opinion.  

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of 

the academy trust’s income and expenditure.  

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:  

 Planning our assurance procedures including identifying key risks;  

 Carrying out sample testing on controls;  
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 Carrying out substantive testing including analytical review; and  

 Concluding on procedures carried out. 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 

expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not 

been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the 

authorities which govern them. 

 

 

Reporting Accountant  
Mazars LLP  
5th Floor 
3 Wellington Place 
Leeds 
LS1 4AP 
 
15 December 2022 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Mazars LLP (Dec 16, 2022 13:05 GMT)
Mazars LLP

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2022 
(including Income and Expenditure Account)  
 

 
 Note 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
£’000 

Restricted 
General  

Funds 
£’000 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
£’000 

Total 
2022 

£’000 

Total 
2021 

£’000 
Income and 
endowments from:       
Donations and capital 
grants 2 - 2 38 40 36 
Charitable activities:       

Funding for the 
academy trust’s 
educational 
operations 3 - 8,511 - 8,511 8,171 

Other trading 
activities 4 9 205 - 214 218 
Investments 5 - 3 - 3 13 
       

Total   9 8,721 38 8,768 8,438 

       
Expenditure on:       
Charitable activities:       

Academy Trust 
educational 
operations 6 - 8,224 714 8,938 8,600 

       

Total  - 8,224 714 8,938 8,600 

       
Net income / 
(expenditure)  9 497 (676) (170) (162) 
       
Transfers between 
funds  (150) - 150 - - 
       
Other recognised 
gains:       
Actuarial gain on 
defined benefit 
pension schemes 24 - 5,108 - 5,108 309 

Net movement in 
funds  (141) 5,605 (526) 4,938 147   
       
Reconciliation of 
funds       
Total funds brought 
forward at 
1 September 15 243 (3,028) 12,102 9,317 9,170 

       
Total funds carried 
forward at 
31 August  15 102 (2,577) 11,576 14,255 9,317 

       

 
All of the Academy Trust’s activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods. 
Detailed comparatives for the Statement of Financial Activities are at note 26.  
 
The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.  The notes on pages 
29 to 48 form part of these financial statements. 
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Balance sheet as at 31 August 2022   company number 07348329 

 
 

 Note 

2022 
£’000 

2022 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

Fixed assets      
Tangible assets 11  11,576  12,088 
      
Current assets      
Debtors 12 160     346  
Cash at bank and in hand 21 3,184  2,183  

  3,344  2,529  
Liabilities      
Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 13 (634)  (548)  

      
Net current assets   2,710  1,981 

      
Total assets less current 
liabilities   14,286  14,069 
Creditors: amounts falling due 
after more than one year 14  (31)  (61) 
      

Net assets excluding pension 
liability   14,255  14,008 
Defined benefit pension scheme 
liability 24  -  (4,691) 

      
Total net assets    14,255  9,317 

      
Funds of the Academy Trust: 

 
Endowment Funds   25  25 
 
Restricted funds      
Fixed asset fund 15 11,576  12,102  
General fund 15 2,306  1,393  
Pension reserve 15 -  (4,691)  
School Fund 14 246  245  

Total restricted funds          14,128  9,049 
      
Unrestricted income funds 15     
General fund   102  243 
      

      
Total funds   14,255  9,317 

       

 
 
The financial statements on pages 26 to 48 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 15 
December 2022 and are signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Derek G Cross 
Chair of Trustees 
 

Derek Cross (Dec 15, 2022 15:29 GMT)
Derek Cross

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAh8OPpeBNOBec5W74WP7el4VAwcydpTXs


Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust 

28  
 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2022 
 

Cash Flows from operating activities Note 

2022 
£’000 

2021 
£’000 

    

Net cash provided by operating activities 19 1,160 673 
    
Cash flows used in investing activities 20 (159) (249) 
    

Change in cash & cash equivalents in the reporting period  1,001 424 

    
    
    
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 September 2021 21 2,183 1,759 
    

Cash & cash equivalents at 31 August 2022  3,184 2,183 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 
 
1. Statement of accounting policies: Basis of Preparation 
 
Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have been 
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities Statement of 
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (Charities SORP (FRS102)), The 
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies 
Act 2006. 
 
Heckmondwike Grammar School Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS102. 
 
Going Concern 
The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material 
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to 
continue as a going concern.  The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of one year from the 
date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements.  The Trustees have concluded that the Academy 
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no 
material uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. 
 
Income 
All income is recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, receipt is probable and the 
amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. 
 
• Grants 

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis.  The balance of income 
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the 
balance sheet.  Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance related conditions, 
there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors 
as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.   Where entitlement occurs before 
income is received, the income is accrued. 
 
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it 
is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a 
liability. 
 
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant.   Unspent 
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital 
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which 
they are expended. 

 
• Sponsorship Income 

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related-conditions), where receipt is probable and it is measurable reliably. 
 

• Donations 
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related-conditions), 
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 
 

• Other Income 
Other income, including that from the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to 
the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
1.     Statement of accounting policies (continued) 
 
Income (continued) 
• Donated goods, facilities and services 

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the 
expected costs of sale.  If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and 
‘Income from other trading activities’.  Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from 
other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where 
it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the 
financial statements until they are sold.  This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading 
activities’.  
 

Expenditure 
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third 
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the 
obligation can be measured reliably.  Expenditure is classified by activity.  The costs of each activity are made 
up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.  
Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.  Shared costs which contribute 
to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned 
between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on 
the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. 
 
• Expenditure on raising funds 

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and 
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading. 

 
• Charitable Activities 

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including support costs and 
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.  

 
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 
 
Tangible Fixed Assets 
Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation 
and any provision for impairment.  This limit includes any delivery costs and applies to assets such as small 
computer equipment bought in bulk whose total value exceeds £500.  
 
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or 
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected 
useful economic life.  The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of 
Financial Activities and carried forward in the balance sheet.  Depreciation on such assets is charged to the 
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful 
economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust’s depreciation policy.  Where 
tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to 
the unrestricted fund. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off 
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows: 
 

• Freehold buildings 2%–20%  

• Fixtures, fittings and equipment 15% 

• Computer equipment 20% 

 
Assets in the course of construction are included at cost.  Depreciation on these assets is not charged until 
they are brought into use. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
1.      Statement of accounting policies (continued) 
 
Tangible Fixed Assets (continued) 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.  Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets 
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.  Impairment losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Activities. 
 
Liabilities 
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement 
can be estimated reliably.  Liabilities are recognised at the amount the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to 
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past 
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 
 
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation.  Where the effect 
of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted 
at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.  The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised within interest payable and similar charges. 
 
Leased Assets 
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Financial Instruments 
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS102.  The financial assets and 
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows: 
 
Financial Assets – trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured 
at amortised cost as detailed in note 13.  Prepayments are not financial instruments. 
 
Cash at bank – is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 
 
Financial liabilities – trade creditors and other creditors are financial instruments and are measured at 
amortised cost as detailed in note 14.  Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments 
disclosure definition.  Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has 
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial 
instrument.   
 
Cash & Cash equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents represent notice deposit accounts with terms of 30 days 
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
  
Taxation 
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.   
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
1.  Statement of accounting policies (continued) 
 
Taxation (continued) 
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains 
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the 
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to 
charitable purposes. 
 
Pensions Benefits 
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
(‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’).  These are defined benefit schemes. 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over 
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level 
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll.  The contributions are determined by the Government 
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective benefit method.  TPS is an unfunded multi-
employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers.  The TPS is therefore treated as a 
defined contribution scheme and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. 
 
The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in separate 
Trustee administered funds.  Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured 
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current 
rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.  The actuarial 
valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.  The amounts charged 
to the net income / (expenditure) are the current service costs, the cost of scheme introductions, benefit 
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.   Net interest on 
the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises 
the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by 
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the 
benefit obligations.  The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return 
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 
 
Fund Accounting 
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the 
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. 
 
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources, which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by 
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 
 
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the 
funder/donor and include grants from the Education & Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education. 
 
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
1.      Statement of accounting policies (continued) 
 
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (continued) 
Fixed assets are carried in the accounts using an estimate of current value; they are depreciated from cost 
value on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life. 
 
As the present value of the defined benefit liabilities at the reporting date is less than the fair value of the plan 
assets at that date, the plan has a notional surplus.  As management do not consider that the Trust will be able 
to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan, the 
surplus has not been recognised in these financial statements in line with paragraph 28.22 of FRS102.  
 
Critical areas of judgement 
 
It is the view of Trustees that there are no areas of judgement that are significant enough to require disclosure. 
 
2. Donations and Capital Grants 
 
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 
2022 

Total 
2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Capital grants - 38 38 32 
Other donations - 2 2 4 

 - 40 40 36 

 
3. Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations 
 

 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds 2022 2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

DfE/ESFA grants     

General annual grant (GAG) - 8,103 8,103 7,535 
Other DfE / ESFA grants     

  - Teachers Pension EC Grant   - 99 99 295 
  - Teachers Pay Grant - 35 35 105 
  - Pupil Premium - 68 68 59 
  - Rates Reclaim - 21 21 41 
  - Supplementary Grant - 75 75 - 
  - Mental Health Lead Grant - 1 1 - 
  - NQT / ECT Funding - 3 3 - 
  - FSM - - - 7 

 - 8,405 8,405 8,042 
     

Other Government grants     

Local authority grants - 33 33 36 
Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational 
operations 

- 1 1 - 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
3. Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational operations (continued) 
 

 Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds 2022 2021 
    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
        

Exceptional Government Funding     

Coronavirus Exceptional Support - - - 6 

Coronavirus catch-up premium - 36 36 43 

Coronavirus mass testing funding - 23 23 44 

Coronavirus vaccination funding - 2 2 - 

School-led Tutoring Grant - 11 11 - 
         

 - 8,511 8,511 8,171 

 
The Academy Trust has been eligible for additional funding in year from government as part of its support and 
education recovery plan following the coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic.  The funding received is shown above 
under ‘Exceptional Government funding’. 
 
The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support in year was £NIL (2021: £6k).  The spend in the year 
ended 31 August 2021, related to premises and free school meal costs.   
 
The funding allocation for coronavirus catch-up premium was £82k, but in line with guidance unused funding 
is deferred into the following year.  The funding recognised relates to spend in year £36k (2021: £43k), which 
is included in note 6 below. 
 
Coronavirus mass testing and vaccination funding received were both based on a formulaic allocation to cover 
school costs.  The coronavirus mass testing funding was to cover costs associated with the mass testing to 
allow students to return safely to school.  The vaccination funding received was to support the rollout of the 
second phase of vaccinations for 12 to 15 year olds.  Costs incurred by the school for both lots of funding are 
included within notes 6 & 8 and related to supplies of goods & services and the use of agency staffing. 
 
School-led tutoring grant has been provided to allow schools to provide tutoring intervention to support catch 
up for lost education due to the pandemic. 
 
4. Other trading activities 
 
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 
2022 

Total 
2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
Hire of facilities 5 - 5 - 
Catering income - 22 22 20 
Other 4 183 187 198 

 9 205 214 218 
 

5. Investment income  
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 
2022 

Total 
2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 

Short term deposits - 3 3 13 
 - 3 3 13 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
6. Expenditure 
           Non Pay Expenditure   

 
Staff 

costs Premises Other 
Total 
2022 

Total 
2021 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Academy’s educational 
operations      
     - Direct costs 5,613 714 713 7,040 6,679 
     - Allocated support costs 1,279 355 264 1,898 1,921 

 6,892 1,069 977 8,938 8,600 

      
Net expenditure for the period includes: 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
 
Operating lease rentals  52 46 
Depreciation 
Interest payable  

714 
1 

677 
2 

Fees payable to auditor for:    
  -  Audit  18 18 
  -  Other assurance services  2 2 
    

7. Charitable activities 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
 
Direct costs – educational operations  7,040 6,679 
Support costs – educational operations  1,898 1,921 
    

Analysis of support costs  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
    
Support staff costs  1,279 1,288 
Premises costs   355 327 
Other support costs  234 264 
Governance costs  30 42 

Total support costs  1,898 1,921 

 
8. Staff 
 
a. Staff costs 
  

 Total Total Staff costs during the period were: 
  2022 2021 

  £’000 £’000     
Wages and salaries  4,705 4,805 
Social security costs  478 478 
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,469 1,425 
Apprenticeship levy  9 9 

  6,661 6,717 
Supply staff costs  166 37 
Staff restructuring costs  65 8 

  6,892 6,762 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
8.  Staff (continued)  
 
a. Staff costs (continued) 
  Total Total 

  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 

Staff restructuring costs comprise:   

Staff redundancy payments  7 8 

Staff severance payments  32 - 

Other restructuring costs  26 - 
      
  65 8 

 
b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments 
 
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £32,150 
(2021: £NIL).  Individually, the payments were £12,000 and £20,150.  
 
c. Staff numbers 
 
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period expressed as headcount was as 
follows: 
  2022 2021 
  No. No. 

 
Teachers  89 92 
Administration and support  82 95 
Management  8 8 

  179 195 

    
d. Higher paid staff 
 
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer national 
insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was: 
  2022 2021 
  No No 

 
£60,001 - £70,000  3 4 
£70,001 - £80,000  1 1 
£80,001 - £90,000 
£100,001 - £110,000 
£110,001 - £120,000  

1 
- 
1 

- 
1 
- 

 
All of the above employees participated in either the Teachers’ Pension Scheme or the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2022, pension contributions for these staff amounted to 
£96,395 (2021: £86,865). 
 
e. Key management personnel 
 
The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the Senior Leadership Team 
as listed on page 4.  The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension and national insurance 
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £811,839 
(2021: £735,297).   
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
8.  Staff (continued)  
 
e. Key management personnel (continued) 
 
The Senior Leadership Team changed in year, both personnel and roles.  There was a new academic role and 
an operational role was removed, alongside a new Temporary Associate Assistant Head Teacher.  The 
increased costs in year include inflation as per the School Teacher’s Pay and Conditions Document, annual 
pay development reviews where applicable, the part year effect of a new Associate Assistant Head Teacher 
and restructuring costs incurred. 
 
9. Related party transactions – Trustees’ remuneration and expenses 
 
One or more directors have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with 
the Academy Trust.  The Head Teacher and other staff directors only receive remuneration in respect of 
services they provide undertaking the roles of Head Teacher and staff members under their contracts of 
employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees.   
 
The value of directors’ remuneration and other benefits for the year, or to / from the month of tenure was as 
follows: 
 
P Roberts (Head Teacher and Director):   

Remuneration    £110,000 - £115,000 (2021: £105,000 - £110,000) 
Employers pension contributions  £25,000 - £30,000 (2021: £25,000 - £30,000) 

 
D Hall (Governor and Director): 

Remuneration     £10,000 - £15,000  (2021: £10,000 - £15,000) 
Employers pension contributions   £0 - £5,000   (2021: £0 - £5,000) 

 
S Hancock (Staff Governor and Director): 
       Remuneration     £50,000 - £55,000 (2021: £25,000,-,£30,000) 
       Employers pension contributions   £10,000 - £15,000 (2021: £5,000 - £10,000) 

 
During the period ended 31 August 2022, no travel and subsistence expenses were reimbursed to Directors 
who were not employees.  Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 25. 
 
10. Trustees and officers insurance 
 
As an alternative to a commercial insurance policy, the academy buys in to the Risk Protection Arrangement 
(RPA) scheme offered by the Education and Skills Funding Agency as this scheme is more cost effective than 
an equivalent commercial insurance package. RPA cover protects the Academy Trusts against losses due to 
unforeseen or unexpected events and protects Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, 
errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business.  Cover of up to £10,000,000 on any one claim is 
offered through the scheme in any membership year. The cost of cover is based on pupil numbers and is met 
through monthly deductions of General Annual Grant (GAG). 
 
11. Tangible fixed assets 
 

 
Freehold Furniture & Computer 

Total Land & Equipment Equipment 
Buildings   

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Cost     

At 1 September 2021 16,996 710 1,000 18,706 
Additions 29 63 112 204 
Disposals -- (8) (36) (44) 

At 31 August 2022 17,025 765 1,076 18,866 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
11. Tangible fixed assets (continued) 
 

 
Freehold Furniture & Computer 

Total Land & Equipment Equipment 

Buildings   
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Depreciation     

At 1 September 2021 5,233 527 858 6,618 
Charged in year 605 53 56 714 
Disposals - (6) (36) (42) 

At 31 August 2022 5,838 574 878 7,290 
     

Net book values    

At 31 August 2022 11,187 191 198 11,576 

At 31 August 2021 11,763 183 142 12,088 

 
Additions to fixed assets during the year for land & building related to the retention works on the successful 
CIF bids from 2019/20, re-tarmac of an area and a new path and ramp.  Furniture & Equipment additions are 
mainly for replacement air-conditioning units, a boiler, updated flooring and lighting and catering area 
upgrades.  Computer equipment additions are generally replacement of out of date equipment.  
 
12. Debtors 
  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 
    

Trade debtors  - 3 
VAT recoverable  48 98 
Other debtors  1 3 
Prepayments and accrued income  111 242 

  160 346 

 
13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year  2022 2021 

  £’000 £’000 
    

Trade creditors  12 48 
Other taxation and social security  122 118 
Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) loan                                                                                     30 30 

Other creditors  169 156 
Accruals and deferred income   301 196 

  634 548 

 

Deferred income  
2022 

£’000 
2021 
£’000 

    
Deferred income at 1 September   66 51 
Released from previous years  (66) (51) 
Resources deferred in the year  110 66 

Deferred income at 31 August   110 66 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (continued) 
 

A Loan of £150,000 was made by the ESFA to the Academy Trust in 2018/19 to part fund an increase in the 
capacity of the sixth form with the creation of the Jo Cox Centre.  The loan is repayable through monthly 
deductions from GAG over 5 years.  Loan repayments started in September 2019.  The interest rate charged 
on loan repayments is 3.23% (fixed for the period of the loan). 

 

14. Creditors: amounts falling due in more than one year 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
    
Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) loan  31 61 

  31 61 

15. Funds 
 
 
 Balance at   Gains, Balance at 

 
31 August 

2021 Income Expenditure 
Losses and 

Transfers 
31 August 

2022 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Restricted general funds      
General Annual Grant  1,005 8,103 (7,266) - 1,842 
Other DfE / ESFA grants 
- Teachers Pay Grant 
 - Teachers Pension Grant 
 - Pupil Premium 
 - Rates Reclaim 
 - Supplementary Grant 
 - Mental Health Lead 
 - NQT / ECT Funding 
 - FSM 
 - Exceptional funding 
Other restricted funds 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

388 

99 
35 
68 
21 
75 

1 
3 
- 

72 
95 

(99) 
(35) 
(68) 
(21) 
(75) 
(1) 
(3) 

- 
(72) 
(19) 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

464 
Other grants 
School funds 
Pension reserve 

- 
245 

(4,691) 

34 
115 

- 

(34) 
(114) 
(417) 

- 
- 

5,108 

- 
246 

- 

 (3,053) 8,721 (8,224) 5,108 2,552 

Restricted fixed asset 
funds      
Inherited assets 5,495 - (714) - 4,781 
DfE/ESFA capital grants 6,607 38 - 150 6,795 

 12,102 38 (714) 150 11,576 

 
 
     

Total restricted funds 9,049 8,759 (8,938) 5,258 14,128 

      

Total unrestricted funds 243 9 - (150) 102 

Endowment funds 
 

25 - - - 25 
      

Total funds 9,317 8,768 (8,938) 5,108 14,255 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
15. Funds (continued) 
 
The specific purposes to which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 
 
The restricted general funds relate to grants receivable from the ESFA and other sources that are used to fund 
the operating activities of the Academy.  School funds represent the balance of voluntary income received from 
parents that can only be used to fund named school trips and other specific educational activities.  
 
The restricted fixed asset funds represent the net book values of donated assets and assets purchased from 
ESFA and other government grants, which have to be held for the continuing use of the Academy Trust together 
with any unspent grants useable for capital purposes.  Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of 
State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 
August 2022. 
 
During the year, £150k was transferred from unrestricted funds to the restricted fixed asset fund.  This transfer 
represents the difference between capital income and capital expenditure (the self-funded element of capital 
additions). 
 
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows: 
 
 Balance at   Gains, Balance at 

 
31 August 

2020 Income Expenditure 
Losses and 

Transfers 
31 August 

2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Restricted general funds      
General Annual Grant  267 7,535 (6,797) - 1,005 
Other DfE / ESFA grants 
- Teachers Pay Grant 
 - Teachers Pension Grant 
 - Pupil Premium 
 - Rates Reclaim 
 - FSM 
 - Exceptional funding 
Other restricted funds 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

282 

295 
105 
59 
41 

7 
93 

125 

(295) 
(105) 

(59) 
(41) 
(7) 

(93) 
(19) 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

388 
Other grants 
School funds 
Pension reserve 

- 
230 

(4,623) 

36 
109 

- 

(36) 
(94) 

(377) 

- 
- 

309 

- 
245 

(4,691) 

 (3,844) 8,405 (7,923) 309 (3,053) 

Restricted fixed asset 
funds      
Inherited assets 6,172 - (677) - 5,495 
DfE/ESFA capital grants 6,469 32 - 106 6,607 

 12,641 32 (677) 106 12,102 

 
 
     

Total restricted funds 8,797 8,437 (8,600) 415 9,049 

      

Total unrestricted funds 348 1 - (106) 243 

Endowment funds 
 

25 - - - 25 
      

Total funds 9,170 8,438 (8,600) 309 9,317 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
 
16. Analysis of net assets between funds 
 
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by: 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 

Restricted 
General 

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
Total Funds 

2022 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     

Tangible fixed assets - - 11,576 11,576 
Current assets 102 3,242 - 3,344 
Current liabilities - (634) - (634) 
Non-current liabilities - (31) - (31) 

Total net assets 102 2,577 11,576 14,255 

 
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows: 

 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 

Restricted 
General 

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
Total Funds 

2021 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 
Tangible fixed assets 
Current assets 
Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

 
- 

243 
- 
- 

 
- 

2,272 
(548) 

(61) 

 
12,088 

14 
- 
- 

 
12,088 
2,529 
(548) 

(61) 
Pension scheme liability - (4,691) - (4,691) 

Total net assets 243 (3,028) 12,102 9,317 

     
   
17. Capital commitments 

  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 

 
Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements  22 40 

  22 40 

 
18. Commitments under operating leases 
 
At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases was: 
  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 

 
Amounts due within one year  50 51 
Amounts due between one and five years  112 161 

  162 212 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
 
19. Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflow from operating activities 
 
  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of 
financial activities)  (170) (162) 
Adjusted for:    
  Depreciation (note 11)  714 677 
  Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (note 2)  (40) (36) 
  Interest receivable (note 5)  (3) (13) 
  Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions paid (note 24)  339 300 
  Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 24)  78 77 
  Decrease in stocks   - 2 
  Decrease in debtors (note 12)  186 185 
  Increase / (Decrease) in creditors (notes 13 and 14)  56 (357) 
Net cash provided by Operating Activities  1,160 673 

 
20. Cash flows from investing activities 
  2022 2021 
  £’000 £’000 
    

Dividends, interest and rents from investments  3 13 
Disposal of tangible fixed assets  2 - 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets  (204) (298) 
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA  38 32 
Capital funding received from sponsors and others  2 4 
Net cash used in investing activities  (159) (249) 
 
 
21.         Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

 

 

At 
31 August 

2022 

At 
1 

September 
2021 

  £’000 £’000 

 
Cash in hand and at bank 

 
             3,184 2,183 

  3,184 2,183 

        
22.  Analysis of change in net cash 

 

At 1 
September 

2021 
Cash 
flows 

Other 
non-cash 
changes 

At 31 
August 

2022 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
 
Cash in hand and at bank 2,183 1,001 - 3,184 

 2,183   3,184 

     

Loans falling due within one year (30) 30 (30) (30) 

Loans falling due after more than one year (61) - 30 (31) 

Total 2,092 1,031 - 3,123 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
    
23. Members’ liability 

 
Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event 
of it being wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a Member, such 
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases 
to be a Member. 
 
24. Pension and similar obligations 
 
The Academy Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Bradford Metropolitan District Council.  Both are multi-employer 
defined benefit schemes. 

 
The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.  The latest 
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019. 
Contributions amounting to £100,367 (2021: £120,856) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 and 
are included within creditors. 
 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
 
Introduction 
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scheme) is a statutory, unfunded, defined benefit occupational 
scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers’ Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended).  These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other 
educational establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local 
authorities.  In addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and lecturers 
in some establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership.  Membership is 
automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for teachers and 
lecturers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract.  Teachers and lecturers are 
able to opt out of the TPS. 
 
The Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account 
Although members may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are set 
out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act (1972) and Public Service Pensions Act (2013) and are 
paid by public funds provided by Parliament.  The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 
“pay as you go” basis – contributions from members, along with those made by employers, are credited to the 
Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Acts. 
 
The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting and 
Valuation Account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases).  From 
1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to assuming that the 
balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of return. 
 
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in 
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published 
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial 
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many 
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation 
report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation 
and subsequent consultation are:  
 
• employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
24. Pension and similar obligations (continued) 
 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
• total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service 

to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with 
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service 
deficit of £22,000 million  

 
• the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE 

rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in 
excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate 
of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.  

 
The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023. 
 
A copy of the latest valuation report and supporting documents can be found on the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
website. 
 
The total pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,192,000 (2021: £1,179,000), of which 
employer’s contributions totalled £849,000 (2021: £838,000) and employees contributions totalled £343,000 
(2021: £341,000).  
 
Under the definitions set out in FRS102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.  The 
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.  
The trust has set out above the information available on the scheme. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate Trustee- administered 
funds.  The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £251,000 (2021: £282,000), of 
which employer’s contributions totalled £190,000 (2021: £214,000) and employees’ contributions totalled 
£61,000 (2021: £68,000).  The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.6% until March 2022, 19.3% 
April 2022 to March 2023, for employers and between 5.5% and 12.5% for employees. 
 
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event 
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the 
Department for Education.  The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. 

 
Principal actuarial assumptions  

At 
31 August 

2022 

At 
31 August 

2021 
Rate of increase in salaries  4.05% 3.95% 
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation  2.80% 2.70% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities  4.10% 1.70% 
Inflation assumption (CPI)  2.80% 2.70% 
Commutation of pensions to lump sums  75.00% 75.00% 

 
Pension Increase Orders are used to set the level of pension increases with effect from 1 April each year, with 
reference to the change in CPI inflation over the 12 months to the previous September, which was announced 
in October.  This was 10.1% and was considerably higher than the CPI assumption set by employers as at 31 
August 2022.  Although Pension Increase Orders have always been set with reference to the September CPI 
for the last 10 years and the September RPI for the preceding 20 years, they are not automatically set and 
they are only known with absolute certainty when the Pension Increase Order ins enacted by Parliament, which 
is usually in April of the following year.  Similarly, the likely level of the forthcoming Pension Increase Order 
2023 was not known at 31 August.  Consequently, no adjustment has been made to recognise the possible 
2023 Pension Increase Order within the CPI assumption. 
 

 

https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx
https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx
https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx
https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
24. Pension and similar obligations (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
The mortality assumptions at the accounting date are based on mortality experience of members within the 
Fund based on analysis carried out as part of the 2019 Actuarial Valuation and allow for expected future 
mortality improvements.   
 
Sample life expectancies at age 65 in normal health resulting from these mortality assumptions are shown 
below: 

  

At 
31 August 

2022 

At 
31 August 

2021 
Retiring today  Years Years 
Males  21.8 21.9 
Females  24.6 24.7 
Retiring in 20 years    
Males  22.5 22.6 
Females  25.7 25.8 

 
 
Sensitivity Analysis 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
Discount rate + 0.1%  (171) (270) 
Discount rate - 0.1%  171 270 
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase  (225) (466) 
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease   225 479 
CPI rate + 0.1%  23 37 
CPI rate - 0.1%  (23) (37) 

 
 
The Academy Trust’s share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme were: 

  
 

31 August 2022  31 August 2021 
  £’000  £’000 

Equities  6,222  6,081 
Bonds  834  941 
Property  304  288 
Cash  312  167 
Other  117  106 

Total market value of assets  7,789  7,583 
Present value of scheme liabilities  (7,774)  (12,274) 

Net pension scheme surplus/(deficit) 
Less notional surplus not recognised  

15 
(15)  

(4,691) 
- 

Net pensions recognised in financial 
statements  -  (4,691) 

 
As the present value of the defined benefit scheme liabilities at the reporting date is less than the fair value of 
plan assets at that date, the scheme has a notional surplus. As management do not consider that the Trust 
will be able to recover this surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from 
the plan, the surplus has not been recognised in these financial statements in line with paragraph 28.22 of 
FRS102. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
24. Pension and similar obligations (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £103,000 (2021: £1,061,000 gain). 
 
 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
 
Current service cost (net of employee contributions)  (529) (514) 
Interest cost  (78) (77) 

Total operating charge  (607) (591) 

    
 
Analysis of pension finance income 

  
   2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
 
Expected return on pension scheme assets  130 109 
Interest on pension liabilities  (208) (186) 

Pension finance income   (78) (77) 

    
The actuarial gains and losses for the current year are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.  The 
cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities since the 
adoption of FRS 17/FRS 102 is a £3,351,000 gain (2021: £1,757,000 loss). 
 
 
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 
 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
    

At 1 September  12,274 10,913 
Current service cost   529 514 
Interest cost  208 186 
Employee contributions   61 68 
Actuarial loss  (5,150) 643 
Benefits paid  (148) (50) 

At 31 August  7,774 12,274 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
24. Pension and similar obligations (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued) 
 
Movements in the fair value of Academy Trust’s share of scheme assets 

  
2022 

£’000 
2021 

£’000 
    

At 1 September  7,583 6,290 
Interest income on assets   130 109 
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on assets  (27) 952 
Employer contributions  190 214 
Employee contributions  61 68 
Benefits paid  (148) (50) 

At 31 August  7,789 7,583 

    
 
 
 
25. Related party transactions 
 
Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from 
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trust 
has an interest.  All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance 
with the Trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.  There were no related party 
transaction took place during the year. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued) 
 
26.   Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2021 (including Income and 

Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses) 
 

  

Unrestricted 
Funds 
£’000 

Restricted 
General  

Funds 
£’000 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
£’000 

Total 
2021 

£’000 

 
 
 

Income and endowments 
from:       
 
Donations and capital grants  - 4 32 36  
Charitable activities:       

Funding for the academy        
   trust’s educational operations  - 8,171 - 8,171  
Other trading activities  1 217 - 218  
Investments  - 13 - 13  
       

Total   1 8,405 32 8,438  

       
Expenditure on:       
       
Charitable activities:       

Academy Trust educational 
operations  - 7,923 677 8,600  

       

Total  - 7,923 677 8,600  

       
Net income/ (expenditure)   1 482 (645) (162)  
       
Transfers between funds  (106) - 106 -  
       

Other recognised losses:       
Actuarial gain on defined benefit 
pension schemes  - 309 - 309  

Net movement in funds  (105) 791 (539) 147  
       
Reconciliation of funds       
Total funds brought forward at 
1 September 2020  348 (3,819) 12,641 9,170  

       
Total funds carried forward at 
31 August 2021  243 (3,028) 12,102 9,317  

       

All of the Academy Trust’s activities derive from continuing operations during the above financial period. 
 
27. Agency Arrangements 
 
The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent of the ESFA, any unspent funds 
are carried forward for distribution in a subsequent year.   

                2022               2021 

               £               £ 

   
Funds brought forward 34,151 8,267 
ESFA receipts in year 73,535 59,390 

Amounts disbursed to students in year (61,417) (33,506) 

Funds carried forward 46,269 34,151 
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